Lesson 12

Jesus' Resurrection

Objective

Students will learn that we can prove the Bible is from God by looking at Jesus' Resurrection.

Supplies

Teachers and/or Coordinators ensure supplies are ready prior to each class.

Print From the Site:			
This From the Site.			
 Jesus' Resurrection - Student Activity Sheet (one per student) 			
Jesus' Resurrection - Grade 5-6 Student Booklet - for each Gr. 5-6 student to take home or to read during the class time.			
☐ Jesus' Resurrection - Visual Aids for Lesson (one for teacher to show)			
☐ Bible			
☐ Pens/Pencils/Pencil Crayons			
☐ Attendance Chart			
☐ Stickers (for attendance)			
Optional Supplies			

Teacher Tips

★ See Lesson 1

☐ Snack - Cheerios

1) Introduction to Lesson

As students enter, welcome them and help them find a chair to sit at. Thank them for coming. Take attendance.

Say: We are going to continue looking at whether the Bible is from God and can we prove it? This will help you be able to know for sure that the Bible truly is from God and will help you share that knowledge with others.

2) Class Time - Jesus' Resurrection

30 minutes

Have Visual Aid ready to show students while you read. Point out the pictures.

Ask: What do you think of when you hear of a miracle? (Let students answer). Today we are going to see the importance of the miracle of Jesus' Resurrection and see, could it really have happened? Did Jesus really rise from the dead? We will look at this idea today and next time.

Jesus' Resurrection

We spent the last while looking at the Creation. If this is the first and biggest miracle, how easy is it for us to believe and understand the other miracles that Jesus and the apostles did on earth? If something came from nothing, that is outside the known laws of nature and shown to be impossible by science, yet they admit it did happen, is it so hard to believe that Jesus walked on water, or turned water to wine? But to be sure, let's look at the proof of one of the other best-known miracles—the resurrection of Christ—so we can see that miracles are another way we can know the Bible is real and accurate.

So for example the birth of a child is wonderful, but it follows natural laws and is not a miracle, but walking on water is a miracle.

There is nothing miraculous about helping someone who needs CPR. But bringing a man back from the dead who was dead for four days; that is a miracle.

We have shown God exists through valid evidence, and we will continue to see that miracles are not only possible, but reasonable. It makes sense that if there is a God, He would want to use the supernatural sometimes to get our attention.

Jesus claimed to be God and then used miracles to prove that claim. When Peter preached to the Jews, he said Jesus proved to be God because of the miracles he did. Let's turn to Acts chapter 2 and we will read it as a class. (Help students find Acts 2:22)

Acts 2:22 – Peter is speaking to the people in Jerusalem on the day of Pentecost:

Men of Israel, hear these words: Jesus of Nazareth, a Man attested by God to you by miracles, wonders, and signs which God did through Him in your midst, as you yourselves also know—

"As you yourselves know..." Remember from last time that the Bible didn't stop right then and there because they took Peter and killed him for telling a lie?

Even Jesus' enemies admitted He performed things that were miraculous and wonderful.

Do you know the story of Lazarus? He was a friend of Jesus, who had been dead four days before Jesus raised him? Let's read about Jesus talking with the people who were mourning for Lazarus, who had been dead already four days.

John 11:40-48

40 Jesus said to her, "Did I not say to you that if you would believe you would see the glory of God?" 41 Then they took away the stone from the place where the dead man was lying. And Jesus lifted up His eyes and said, "Father, I thank You that You have heard Me. 42 And I know that You always hear Me, but because of the people who are standing by I said this, that they may believe that You sent Me." 43 Now when He had said these things, He cried with a loud voice, "Lazarus, come forth!" 44 And he who had died came out bound hand and foot with graveclothes, and his face was wrapped with a cloth. Jesus said to them, "Loose him, and let him go."

45 Then many of the Jews who had come to Mary, and had seen the things Jesus did, believed in Him. 46 But some of them went away to the Pharisees and told them the things Jesus did. 47 Then the chief priests and the Pharisees gathered a council and said, "What shall we do? For this Man works many signs. 48 If we let Him alone like this, everyone will believe in Him, and the Romans will come and take away both our place and nation."

Question:

When Jesus's enemies heard the witnesses, what did they admit in verse 47? (This man works many signs. Jesus did miracles!)

Speaking of Jesus let's turn to John 11 (Help students) it says:

John 11:53

Then, from that day on, they plotted to put Him to death.

John 12:9-11

Now a great many of the Jews knew that He was there; and they came, not for Jesus' sake only, but that they might also see Lazarus, whom He had raised from the dead. 10

But the chief priests plotted to put Lazarus to death also, 11 because on account of him many of the Jews went away and believed in Jesus.

Questions:

Who else were the chief priests going to kill besides Jesus? (Lazarus)

Why? Since He was proof of Jesus' miracle... They didn't deny the miracle, but they decided to kill them both because of the result of the miracle – belief in Christ. They had direct evidence right in front of them and chose disbelief. It is not caused by lack of evidence but lack of sincerity. His miracles prove He was the Son of God.

Now we are going to look at the biggest miracle Jesus did, the one that makes Christianity what it is:

The Resurrection of Jesus Christ – Evidence from the Burial Tomb

Some will say it doesn't matter if Jesus died, but it does. Belief in the resurrection is essential.

If Jesus' body is still in the tomb, then how is he going to make good on his claim to raise you and me from the dead? Resurrection is not a side point; it is the main point.

But are Christians foolish? Every New Testament promise either stands or fails on the resurrection of Christ.

How do we prove that the resurrection (a miracle) really did occur?

Belief in Jesus' Resurrection is based on evidence

The resurrection proves that Jesus is the Son of God.

If Jesus rose, it proves he can and is the Son of God. This is also another instance of prophetic prophecy. Jesus predicted accurately that he would die.

Now some will say they don't believe in the resurrection because they know how serious the consequences are or because they don't believe in miracles. But, all of us believe in things we haven't seen. Even evolutionists when asked, "Have you ever seen life evolve?" will say, "No." "Have you ever seen life come from non-life?" They will say, "No." If you ask, "Where did the big bang come from? And the explosion... Have you ever seen an explosion that can do that?" And they will say, "No."

The skeptic believes things they have never seen. So just because you have never seen a resurrection, does it mean it is impossible to do that? No! Even skeptics can't follow through with their logic.

As we saw earlier, the New Testament documents are the most historically documented words ever written, along with the Old Testament.

Let's look at the facts about Jesus' resurrection:

The Tomb Was Open and Empty

In regards to Jesus' resurrection, it has to be one of three things: Someone took Jesus' body (either the disciples, Jews or Romans and it is a fraud); it was superhuman, or Jesus walked out on his own and he never even died.

Did Someone Take the Body?

1) Was it the Disciples of Christ?

Matthew 27:62-66

The next day, the one after Preparation Day, the chief priests and the Pharisees went to Pilate. 63 "Sir," they said, "we remember that while he was still alive that deceiver said, 'After three days I will rise again.' 64 So give the order for the tomb to be made secure until the third day. Otherwise, his disciples may come and steal the body and tell the people that he has been raised from the dead. This last deception will be worse than the first."

65 "Take a guard," Pilate answered. "Go, make the tomb as secure as you know how." 66 So they went and made the tomb secure by putting a seal on the stone and posting the guard.

The Jews and Romans set the stone in place with guards, so the disciples couldn't steal the body. Pilate gives a guard (4-16 trained soldiers), and they seal the stone and make it secure. These guards would take the responsibility seriously as their lives were at risk. These were trained guards with weapons. They know there is supposed to be some action on day three because the Jewish leaders told them that was what Jesus had said!

Matthew 28:11-15

While the women were on their way, some of the guards went into the city and reported to the chief priests everything that had happened. 12 When the chief priests had met with the elders and devised a plan, they gave the soldiers a large sum of money, 13 telling them, "You are to say, 'His disciples came during the night and stole him away while we were asleep.' 14 If this report gets to the governor, we will satisfy him and keep

you out of trouble." 15 So the soldiers took the money and did as they were instructed. And this story has been widely circulated among the Jews to this very day.

Here we read the guards reported the body is gone! That the Jews gave money to the soldiers.

Question:

What did the Jews say the guards were to say if questioned? (Let students answer. You are to say His disciples came and stole Him while you were asleep. Bribe – and told what to say – story is disciples came – while guards? While sealed? Weapons, while sleeping – all of you? If you are asleep how can you witness who took the body? Move a large stone really quietly? The Bible states there was a severe earthquake – even an earthquake?)

The evidence states: the body is not there!

- 1. Sleeping men make for poor eye-witnesses. How many times have you slept and been able to make an eye-witness testimony about what had happened accurately? You wouldn't even be awake to know what did happen, let alone testify to it. Yet, the guards said what happened while they slept.
- 2. The Jews said the disciples stole the body while the guards slept. Yet the guards knew who stole the body... if they knew who stole the body, it would have been easy to arrest those people for stealing a body that was under Roman guard and was sealed.
- 3. The disciples would have immediately been arrested and killed for doing such a thing.
- 4. Pretty amazing that the guards were sleeping when their life depended on it. Also that all of them slept and yet they still knew who it was who took the body.
- 5. The whole time the people were supposedly carrying a heavy stiff body away, not one of the soldiers who saw it (while supposedly sleeping) chased after them?
- 6. If the gospel accounts weren't true, because the resurrection didn't happen, would the church have preserved them as true when they knew it wasn't? And we saw earlier that the church not only kept the accounts but made copies. If they knew that the disciples stole the body, why would people continue to die for their faith and risk persecution during the 1st and 2nd centuries? We saw in an earlier study that

Christians were persecuted and tortured for their belief. If the disciples did take the body, they all knew they were dying for a lie.

So far we have seen that the most logical account for the creation story is that God did a pretty awesome miracle. We also saw that Jesus' enemies didn't deny He raised Lazarus but believed it so much they decided to kill Jesus and Lazarus because of the attention Lazarus was getting. We saw that Jesus could indeed raise people from the dead.

Finally, we have begun to look at the resurrection. The fact that without the resurrection our Christian faith is pointless and even full of lies. But with the resurrection it proves Jesus is the Son of God. By looking at the options provided so far, we see it is not reasonable to think someone could have stolen the body with trained guards standing watch. Next time we will look at even more evidence of Jesus' resurrection.

Any thoughts or questions?

3) Activity Time - Resurrection Race

5-10 minutes

Divide students into two teams (or more, based on class size) and have them stand against the wall. On the opposite wall have a white board, easel or paper attached to the wall, have two columns – 1 column for each group. Have markers or pencils available.

NOTE: if you use paper, make sure markers won't soak through to the wall.

Write the phrase "Jesus is risen" on the board or on paper for reference.

Say: Your team will be racing to complete the phrase "Jesus is risen," against the other team. You will be writing one letter at a time. When I say "Go!" the first students will race to the board/paper, write the letter J, leave the marker there, walk fast back to their line, and tag the next person. The next students will walk fast to write the letter E and so on until teams complete the phrase. The first team to complete the phrase and return to their line wins. You must walk – you can walk fast but you must walk. Anyone who runs will be sent back to try again.

You may repeat the race, giving the students a new phrase to complete (ex: Jesus rose from the grave, Jesus is alive, or the tomb is empty) or have students hop to get across the room and back.

When they are done, have them sit and say: A lot of racing happened in our lesson today. In the Bible the women raced to tell the disciples that Jesus appeared to them. Peter and John raced to the empty tomb. And the two followers Jesus spoke to on the road hurried back to Jerusalem to tell others they'd seen Jesus. Jesus' followers were excited to hear the good news that Christ had risen. Jesus conquered death so we can

have forgiveness and eternal life. We should be excited to share this message with our friends and family too!

4) Activity Time - Student Booklet Activity Sheet

10 minutes

Hand out pencils or colored pencils to the class along with the activity sheet. Read the true or false together as a class, have them circle the answer on their own and then go through the answers at the end as a group and have students check their own answers.



Then if time allows, let the students do the maze at the bottom.

Answers:

1.	True	6. False	11. True
2.	True	7. True	12. True
3.	True	8. True	13. True
4.	False	9. False	
5.	True	10. False	

So far we have studied that Jesus' followers couldn't have taken his body. Next week we will look at Jesus' enemies – could one of them have taken His body? Then we will look to see did Jesus even die? We will look at all the evidence so we can be sure that Jesus did indeed rise from the dead and that is another evidence to prove that the Bible is the Word of God.

5) Optional Snack - Cheerios

5 minutes

Hand out a few snacks to each student. Say, **Today I want you to enjoy a snack while we** remember all the fun facts we learned. These cheerios remind us of the tomb, with the round stone.

The Bible is reliable and trustworthy. We can trust it has been written and recorded properly. What was the most meaningful thing you learned today and why? Let's go around the room and share.

Provide a napkin for children to clean their hands if needed. Review with students by asking them questions from the lesson again and discuss any questions they have while snacking. What questions do they have about today's lesson?

6) Optional Activity - Memory Verse

2-5 minutes

Have students turn their Bibles to **1 Corinthians 6:14** and read the verse aloud as a class 2 times.

1 Corinthians 6:14 "And God raised the Lord and will also raise us up by his power."

Other options include:

- You saying a word and having them repeat it as you go through the verse
- Have students repeat a small phrase ex: "and God raise the Lord..." a few times before working on the next phrase.
- Have students repeat after each other
- Ask students to think of hand gestures. Ex: Hands rising "And God raise the Lord", point to each other "and will also raise us up", etc. and then go through verses as a class with gestures.

We can have confidence that the Bible is true and by following Jesus we too will rise and go to heaven one day if we remain obedient and faithful to God and His Word.

7) Closing Prayer

*If desired, ask the children if they have any prayer requests and write them down to help you remember. Then ask all children to bow their heads and fold their hands to pray.